Public Document Pack



Standards Committee

| Date: | Tuesday, 27 January 2009 |
|--------|---------------------------------------|
| Time: | 6.15 pm |
| Venue: | Committee Room 3 - Wallasey Town Hall |

| Contact Officer: | Mike Archbold |
|------------------|----------------------------|
| Tel: | 0151 691 8471 |
| e-mail: | mikearchbold@wirral.gov.uk |
| Website: | http://www.wirral.gov.uk |

AGENDA

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The members of the Committee are asked to consider whether they have a personal or prejudicial interest in connection with any item on this agenda and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of that interest.

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 1 December 2008.

3. CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Pages 5 - 20)

This report will be considered by the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 26 January and subsequently by the Cabinet. Any views from this Committee can also be submitted to the Cabinet.

4. ETHICAL GOVERNANCE DIAGNOSTIC

To consider any matters arising out of the focus group meetings held earlier in the day.

5. OMBUDSMAN CASES - PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The Monitoring Officer will report.

6. DECLARATION OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY - UPDATE

The Monitoring Officer will report.

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To consider an alternative date.

8. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Monday 1 December 2008

| Present: | | Mr Brian Cummings (Chair) | |
|------------------------|-------------|--|--|
| | Councillors | WJ Davies K Hayes AR McLachlan C Meaden | L Rowlands A Taylor C Teggin P Williams |
| <u>Deputy:</u> | Councillor | W Duffey (for C Blake | ley) |
| Independent Members | | Mr Ken Harrison (Vice-Chair) | Mr Alex Nuttall |

19 **INDEPENDENT MEMBER**

The Committee welcomed Mr Alex Nuttall, who was attending his first meeting.

20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The members of the Committee were asked to consider whether they had a personal or prejudicial interest in connection with any item on the agenda and, if so, to declare it and to state the nature of such interest. No declarations were made.

21 MINUTES

<u>Resolved</u> – That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 September be accepted as a correct record.

22 AUDIT COMMISSION - ETHICAL GOVERNANCE DIAGNOSTIC

Liz Temple-Murray, the Audit Manager, attended the meeting and explained the proposed review, by the Audit Commission, of compliance with ethical issues within the Council. A copy of the draft Ethical Governance Diagnostic had been circulated with the agenda. In it the Audit Commission pointed out that one of the common aspects of failures of governance was not so much the absence of frameworks, controls and arrangements as the absence of appropriate behaviours and values amongst members and officers. The proposed review would look at compliance with statutory requirements and also at behaviour, culture and values.

One of the objectives of the review was to see if the Council was ensuring that the Standards Committee had access to the right information and support to enable it to do its job properly. It is also the intention to examine various documents relating to the work of the Committee and to interview the Chair and members of it.

Ms Temple-Murray stated that the review would involve a three-pronged approach: a snap survey for all members and key officers; an analysis of the findings; and a series of individual meetings and focus groups, leading to a report in March 2009. It

was expected that an action plan, for consideration by members, would follow the report's recommendations.

Some members expressed concern about the large number of questions within the survey, but were assured that it was a nationally developed tool and that each question could be answered quickly. Councillor Rowlands sought an assurance that members could have proper input into the review and was advised that that would come about via the focus groups as well as the survey itself. The Deputy Monitoring Officer added that one purpose of the review would be to ensure that the Standards Committee could operate in the most effective way. It would highlight gaps in provision, such as training, and the Committee itself would have ownership of the action plan.

<u>Resolved</u> – That Ms Temple-Murray be thanked for her report and the officers make the necessary arrangements for the review.

23 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS AND OFFICERS - CONSULTATION

The Deputy Monitoring Officer submitted and reported upon the consultation document issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government: "Communities in Control: Real people, real power – Codes of conduct for local authority members and employees". The document sought views on proposals for revising the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007 and on the proposed introduction of a model code of conduct for local government employees. Answers were requested to a number of specific questions.

The Committee's attention was drawn particularly to the following questions, on which members commented:

Question 1 - "Do you agree that the members' code should apply to a member's conduct when acting in their non-official capacity? In the recent Livingstone case the Court had drawn a distinction between a member's official and non-official capacity, but the document proposed an addition to the model code that "members must not bring their office or authority into disrepute by conduct which is a criminal offence".

The Committee generally welcomed that addition, in view of the need to maintain public esteem.

Question 2 – "Do you agree with [the] definition of 'criminal offence' for the purpose of the members' code? If not, what other definition would you support, for instance should it include police cautions?" The document proposed a definition of 'criminal offence' as any criminal offence for which the member has been convicted in a criminal court, but for which the member does not have the opportunity of paying a fixed penalty instead of facing a criminal conviction.

Question 5 – "Do you agree that an ethical investigation should not proceed until the criminal process has been completed?" It was proposed that, where an allegation involved criminal activity that was, at the time of the allegation being made, being investigated by the police or prosecuted through the courts, the standards committee or the Standards Board, as the case may be, would cease their investigation process until the criminal process had been completed. Any subsequent action under the conduct regime in respect of a member's private conduct would follow the conclusion

of the criminal procedure. The member would not be suspended during the period of the criminal process.

Members expressed some reservations that they might be treated more leniently than, for example, officers.

Resolved – That

(1) the Monitoring Officer consult with his Merseyside colleagues about their authorities' proposed response;

(2) he look into what weight of evidence might be required to justify suspension of a member before a criminal investigation is concluded;

(3) he submit suggested responses to the questions in the document for members to comment on, in order that the Council can respond to the consultation paper by the deadline of 24 December.

24 THE STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND - CASE REVIEW 2008

The Deputy Monitoring Officer submitted for information the Standards Board for England's 2008 Case Review Digest, which provided details of recent cases relating to the application of the Code of Conduct. He indicated that it might assist members in their own deliberations on complaints.

25 THE ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR ENGLAND - GUIDANCE

The Deputy Monitoring Officer submitted for information guidance issued by the Adjudication Panel for England on the circumstances in which it would consider accepting references from Standards Committees under Regulation 17 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008. He pointed out that in the majority of circumstances a Standards Committee would have sufficient powers to deal with a complaint and would need to have satisfied itself that that was not the case if it decided to make a referral.

26 DATES FOR MEETINGS

The Committee's attention was drawn to the fact that its meetings had been arranged for the same evenings as the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which created a problem for the new Monitoring Officer.

<u>Resolved</u> – That the Committee accepts the need for the Director of Law, H.R. and Asset Management to attend meetings of the Audit and Risk Management Committee in his capacity as Director and this Committee as Monitoring Officer and asks that consideration be given to amending the date of one or other of them in order to facilitate that arrangement. This page is intentionally left blank

WIRRAL COUNCIL

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

26 JANUARY 2009

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

- 1.1. This report seeks the Committee's endorsement of a new Code of Corporate Governance in line with the 'CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework' ("THE Framework") published in July 2007.
- 1.2. The Framework replaced the previous Corporate Governance guidance and requires local authorities to undertake specific actions and have in place principles that should underpin the governance of each local government body from 2007/08. This should ensure that the Council complies with the Framework and accordingly the statutory requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

2. BACKGROUND

- 2.1. Each Local Authority operates through a governance framework. This is an interrelated system that brings together an underlying set of legislative requirements, governance principles and management processes. Traditionally, local government has conformed in whole or in part and in many different ways to the principles of good governance and has had a sound base on which to build.
- 2.2. In 2001, CIPFA in conjunction with SOLACE and with support from key organisations in local government responded to the need to draw together the principles identified in the Cadbury and Nolan reports and published 'Corporate Governance in Local Government – A Keystone Community for Governance Framework'. This Framework recommended that local authorities review their existing governance arrangements against a number of key principles and report annually on their effectiveness in practice. Through the development of the Framework authorities were encouraged to meet the standards of the best.
- 2.3. Since the 2001 Framework was published, local government has been subject to continued reform intended to improve local accountability and engagement and the revised Framework became effective from 2007.

2.4 This committee considered a report by the Director of Finance on the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework on 27 September 2007. The Committee resolved;

(1) That the report be noted.

(2) That regular updates be presented to this Committee via the Internal Audit Update report.

(3) That the member development required by the Framework be referred to the Member Training Steering Group.

3. DELIVERING GOOD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

- 3.1. The framework document is intended to be followed as best practice for developing and maintaining a local code of governance and for discharging accountability for the proper conduct of public business through the publication of an Annual Governance Statement that will make the adopted practice open and explicit.
- 3.2. The Framework identifies the following six core principles developed by the Independent Commission on Good Governance in Public Services and supported by the Department for Communities and Local Government and CIFPA, that should underpin the governance of each local government body:
 - Focussing on the purpose of the Authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area.
 - Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles.
 - Promoting values for the Authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour.
 - Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk.
 - Developing the capacity and capability of Members and officers to be effective.
 - Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.
- 3.3. Authorities are urged to test the effectiveness of their structures against these principles by:
 - Reviewing existing arrangements against the Framework.

- Developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, including arrangements for ensuring its ongoing application and effectiveness.
- Preparing a governance statement in order to report publicly on the extent to which they comply with their code on an annual basis, including how they have monitored the effectiveness of their governance arrangements in the year, and on any planned changes for the coming period.
- 3.4. The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations require local authorities to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement in accordance with the Framework from 2007/08 and for the Statement on Internal Control to be subsumed within this as there is no longer a requirement to prepare a separate statement.
- 3.5. In order to review the existing arrangements authorities need to:
 - Consider the extent to which the Authority complies with the principles and requirements of good governance set out in the Framework.
 - Identify systems, processes and documentation that provide evidence of compliance.
 - Identify the individuals and committees responsible for monitoring and reviewing the systems, processes and documentation identified.
 - Identify the issues that have not been addressed adequately in the Authority and consider how they should be addressed.
 - Identify the individuals who would be responsible for undertaking the actions required and plan accordingly.
- 3.6. The Internal Audit Section undertakes extensive work in the areas identified above to provide sufficient evidence to support the production of the Annual Governance Statement. The process is overseen by the Corporate Governance Group, chaired by the Chief Executive. Members of this Committee are provided with regular updates via the Internal Audit Update report.

4. CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4.1 The proposed Code is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. It sets out the Council's position in relation to the Framework and follows a review of compliance with it. The Code will be referred to the Standards Committee, the Cabinet and Council and will become part of the Council's constitution. It will be communicated to staff and Members and will be reviewed on at least an annual basis. The Draft Code has been considered by the Corporate Governance Group.

5. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

5.1. There are none arising from this report.

6. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS

6.1. There are no local Member support implications.

7. LOCAL AGENDA 21 STATEMENT

7.1. There are no local agenda 21 implications.

8. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no planning implications.

9. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1. There are no equal opportunities implications.

10. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

10.1. There are no community safety implications.

11. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS

11.1. There are no human rights implications.

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS

12.1 Local Government Accounts and Audit Regulations and the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2007.

13. **RECOMMENDATION**

13.1 That the Code of Corporate Governance attached as Appendix 1 to this report be endorsed and be considered further by Cabinet.

BILL NORMAN DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT



CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 This document sets out Wirral Council's Code of Corporate Governance. It has been produced in line with the guidance outlined in the framework document published jointly by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives/Senior Managers (SOLACE) *Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.*
- 1.2 Wirral Council ("the Council") is committed to the principles of good corporate governance and demonstrates this commitment through the development, adoption and implementation of this Code. This Code sets out the Corporate Governance arrangements which are currently in place, how the Council will continue to review these arrangements and identify improvements to ensure its effective application in all aspects of the Council's work.
- 1.3 This Council recognises that in order to fulfil its purpose and deliver the intended outcomes for its citizens and service users it needs to have in place comprehensive arrangements for corporate governance and accountability designed to ensure that it operates in an effective, efficient and ethical manner.

2. WHAT IS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE?

2.1 It is defined within the CIPFA/SOLACE framework document as being:

...about how local government bodies ensure that they are doing the right things, in the right way for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open honest and accountable manner.

It comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values by which local government bodies are directed and controlled and through which they account to, engage with and, where appropriate, lead their communities.

This means the way in which organisations manage their business, determine strategy and objectives and go about achieving those objectives. This reminds local authorities of their key role in governing and leading communities and that effective local government relies on public confidence in Councillors and officers. Where good corporate governance is in place it underpins credibility and confidence in public services.

2.2 There are 6 core principles which underpin a strong governance framework. These are:

- Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area;
- Members and officers working together to a clearly defined purpose with clearly defined functions and roles;
- Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour;
- Taking informed transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;
- Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective; and
- Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

3.0 THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.1 These core principles underpin the Council's Code of Corporate Governance.

| CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES | SUPPORTING EVIDENCE |
|---|---|
| 1. Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area. | |
| 1.1Exercising strategic leadership by developing and clearly communicating the authority's purpose and vision and its intended outcomes for citizens and service users. | 1.1 There is a clear statement of the organisation's purpose in: Wirral's Sustainable Community Strategy; The Council's Corporate Plan; and Wirral's Story of Place (in the Local Area Agreement, "LAA"). The Council's vision is of, "a more prosperous and equal Wirral enabling all communities to thrive and achieve their full potential". This is also consistent with the partnership vision of the Local Strategic Partnership. Clear delivery arrangements are in place through the corporate plan / departmental plans The Council reviews its plan, priorities and |

| | ······ |
|---|--|
| | objectives on an annual basis. |
| | A partnership register is in place and is subject to review. A partnership toolkit is being developed. |
| | The Council has also developed a Community Engagement toolkit with partners. |
| 1.2Ensuring that users receive a high quality of service whether directly, or in partnership, or by commissioning | 1.2 There is a clear focus on outcomes for citizens and users as highlighted in our: Annual Performance Plan; and Quarterly Performance Update Report to Chief Officers' Management Team and Cabinet. We engage with customers through the customer engagement toolkit. We have revised our customer care standards and improved our complaints procedure. |
| 1.3Ensuring that the authority makes best use of resources and that tax payers and service users receive excellent value for money. | 1.3 The council works towards improving value for money and submits evidence of success in this area through our: Annual efficiency statement; Publication of annual budget and accounts; Internal audit reports; Medium Term Financial Plan; Use of Resources Action Plan; and Regular reports to the Council's Cabinet on value for money of services. |
| 2 Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. | |
| 2.1 Ensuring that a constructive working relationship exists between authority members and officers and that the responsibilities of members and officers are | 2.1 The council has a protocol for relations between Members and Officers and the council's Constitution sets out clearly the decision making powers of: The Council, The Cabinet, Regulatory Committees; and |

| carried out to a high standard. | Officers. |
|--|---|
| 2.2 Ensuring effective leadership throughout the authority and being clear about executive and non- executive functions and of the roles and responsibilities of the scrutiny function. | 2.2 The council's Constitution also sets out clearly the process for holding the executive to account through the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. These have recently been strengthened by the addition of a scrutiny toolkit and call in guidelines which have received positive comment from the centre for public scrutiny. |
| 2.3 Ensuring relationships between the authority, its partners and the public are clear so that each knows what to expect of the other | 2.3 The public ultimately controls the council through the electoral process, but the council consults with the public through the citizen's panel and in accordance with the community engagement toolkit. The council also consults with the public through the residents' survey, area forums and other engagement mechanisms in accordance with the community engagement toolkit. The Council is the Accountable Body for the LAA. There are terms of reference in place. The Council is currently reviewing the governance arrangements for the LAA. The Council's constitution sets out the statutory roles of the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer. The Council has a partnership register which is reviewed regularly. This records the terms of reference for the partnership which set out the respective roles and responsibilities. A partnership toolkit is being developed. |

| 3 Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. | |
|---|--|
| 3.1 Ensuring authority Members and officers exercise leadership by behaving in ways that exemplify high standards of conduct and effective governance. | 3.1 The council has a code of conduct for members and conduct is monitored by the Standards Committee. In addition the council has: An Equalities Policy; A Code of Conduct for staff; Declarations of interest of members and for staff; Register of Gifts and Hospitality for members and for staff; Financial Regulations; A whistleblowing policy; Members' Training Programme; Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations; and Freedom of Information Procedures |
| 3.2 Ensuring that organisational values are put into practice and are effective. | 3.2 The Council's Corporate Plan and vision has been communicated to staff and stakeholders. |
| | The Council's vision and objectives are linked in to the service planning process, other plans and policies and decision making. They are also contained within the Sustainable Community Strategy and the LAA. There are clear links to the priorities and objectives of partners. These are communicated to staff and partners through a variety of delivery arrangements. |
| | The Council's Standards Committee operates effectively. It has developed a Protocol for local assessment. |

| 4 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk | |
|--|---|
| 4.1 Being rigorous and transparent about how decisions are taken and listening and acting on the outcome of constructive scrutiny | 4.1 The council's Constitution sets out the clearly the decision-making powers of: The Council; The Cabinet; Regulatory Committees; and Officers Scrutiny feedback is taken into account in |
| | decision-making |
| 4.2 Having good quality information, advice and support to ensure that services are delivered effectively and are what the community wants/needs. | 4.2 The council's Data Quality Policy sets the rules and standards for ensuring that high quality information is consistently achieved. Our performance management framework underpins this policy in ensuring that high standards are also achieved in the provision of advice and support. The council's Financial Regulations support the provision of high quality financial advice. |
| 4.3Ensuring that an effective risk management system is in place. | 4.3 The council effectively controls risk through its: Risk Management Strategy; Corporate and Departmental Risk Registers; Consideration of risk in all Cabinet reports; The Audit and Risk Management Committee; and Annual Governance Statement |
| 4.4Using their legal powers to the full benefit of the citizens and communities in their area | 4.4 Legal issues are considered in respect of all reports to the Cabinet, Council and other Committees. There is a protocol in place that ensures the Head of Legal and Member Services is consulted on all reports. |

| 5 Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective | |
|--|---|
| 5.1 Making sure that Members and officers have the skills, knowledge, experience and resources they need to perform well in their roles | 5.1 The council has an annual training programme for members approved by the Members' Training Steering Group and holds regular training sessions for members on a variety of topics, including: Service specific training; Induction training for all new members; and Finance and Audit and Risk Management Committee training. Members have also received performance management and Equalities and Diversity training. The council has an extensive training a leadership development course delivered |
| 5.2 Developing the capability of people with governance responsibilities and evaluating their performance, as individuals and as a group | in partnership with Chester University. 5.2 The council examines the capability of its people with governance responsibilities through Key Issues Exchange and the performance management framework and identifies any training gaps. The relevant training programmes are updated |
| | accordingly. Attached to this Code of Corporate Governance is a list of those policies and procedures which form the core documents with which officers must familiarise themselves upon induction. They will be regularly reviewed and updated and all officers will be required to be aware of all changes on at least an annual basis. |
| 5.3 Encouraging new talent for membership of the authority so that best use can be made in individuals' skills and resources in balancing continuity and renewal. | 5.3 The Council engages with all parts of the community, through its community engagement toolkit, work with the voluntary sector, the Older People's Parliament and the Youth Parliament |

| 6 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability | |
|--|--|
| 6.1 Exercising leadership through a robust scrutiny function which effectively engages local people and all local institutional stakeholders, including partnerships, and develops constructive and accountability relationships | 6.1 The council is clear that ultimately it is accountable to the citizens of Wirral. The Council's community engagement toolkit outlines the means by which local stakeholders will be engaged and how constructive, challenging relationships will be built. The Council is engaging widely with the public in consultation on the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Strategic Asset Review. |
| 6.2 Taking an active and planned approach to dialogue with and accountability to the public to ensure effective and appropriate service delivery whether directly by the authority, in partnership or by commissioning. | 6.2 Building on our community engagement toolkit the council seeks to engage with citizens in a number of ways including: The Citizen's Panel, Area Forums, Older People's Parliament; The Youth Parliament; and The Council's website. |
| | The council engages with other key stakeholders through, amongst other methods: The Wirral Local Strategic Partnership The LAA Programme Board; The Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership; The Children and Young People Strategic Partnership Board; The Strategic Housing Partnership |
| | The council welcomes complaints, whether through the internal complaints system or via the Ombudsman, and seeks to learn from them. |
| | |

| 6.3 Making best use of human resources by taking an active and planned approach to meet responsibility to staff. | 6.3 The council has Investors' in People accreditation for the whole council and actively engages with its staff through: Chief Executive's Roadshows; One Council; Team briefings; The Joint Staff Consultative Committee |
|--|--|
| | The Council produces an annual report on scrutiny. |
| | The Council reports regularly on its performance including an annual performance report. |
| | The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision making. |

4.0 ANNUAL REVIEW AND REPORTING

- 4.1 The Council by adopting this local code, commits itself to continuously improving corporate governance in all of its activities. To ensure it keeps to this on-going commitment, the Corporate Governance Group will monitor the Council's systems and processes for their effectiveness in practice, and keep them under review to ensure that they are up-to-date. Performance monitoring will take the form of:
 - i. an Annual Report;
 - ii. production of an Annual Governance Statement as part of the financial reports which will summarise:
 - compliance with the Local Code;
 - how compliance has been monitored;
 - if changes are required; and
 - how changes are to be implemented.
- 4.2 A copy of the Annual Governance Statement is attached at Appendix 1.
- 4.3 The Corporate Governance Group has been assigned responsibility for Corporate Governance, reporting, as appropriate to the Cabinet and the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Corporate Governance Group consists of:
 - the Chief Executive, as Head of Paid Service;
 - the Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Corporate Services;
 - the Director of Finance, as section 151 officer;
 - the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management, as the Monitoring Officer;
 - the Chief Internal Auditor; and

- the Audit Commission, Audit Manager.

4.4 A copy of this Code of Corporate Governance will be included as part of the Council's constitution and made available to the public on the Authority's website and the results of the annual review to be published each year.

5.0 **REGULAR REVIEW OF POLICIES AND PROCEDURES**

5.1 The Council recognises that Corporate Governance needs to be embedded in all the services it delivers. Therefore, it has identified all those policies and procedures which staff and members need to be aware of and comply with to meet the required standards of corporate governance. A copy of these is attached as Appendix 2. All of these policies will be reviewed at least annually as part of the review of this Code.

6. CONCLUSION

6.1 The Council is fully committed to the principles of corporate governance, and through the measures outlined within this Code, will ensure that adequate arrangements are made with regard to its continued implementation, monitoring and review.

Simon Goacher Head of Legal and Member Services 15 January 2009.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Appendix 1

Annual Governance Statement to be added

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Appendix 2

Core Policies

Corporate Plan **Departmental Plans** Annual Governance Scheme Freedom of Information Publication Scheme **Budget Variation Reporting Protocol** Scheme of Delegation ICT Security Policy Code of Practice for Internet and Email use Conflict of Interest Gifts and Hospitality Corporate Hospitality **Officer/Member Protocol** Corporate Risk Register **Contract Procedure Rules Risk Management Strategy** Member/Officer Code of Conduct Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy Fraud Investigation Plan Equality and Diversity Financial Procedure Rules Whistleblowing Policy Money Laundering Policy **Business Continuity/Contingency Plan** Health and Safety Policies Media Protocol